
1

Governor’s Council on Blindness and Visual Impairment (GCBVI) 
Full Council Meeting Minutes 

November 8, 2019 

Members Present 

Bob Kresmer 
Ted Chittenden 

Amy Porterfield 
Mike Gordon 

Jim LaMay 
Annette Reichman 

Bea Shapiro 
Nathan Pullen 

David Steinmetz 

Terri Hedgpeth 
Donald Porterfield 

Ed Gervasoni 
Michael Bailey 

Brian Dulude 

Members Absent 
Janet Fisher 

Allan Curry 
George Martinez 

Staff Present 

Lindsey Powers 

Guests Present 

Dan Martinez 
Brandi Coffland 

Doris Woltman 
Lisa Yencarelli 

______________________________________________________ 

Call to Order and Introductions 

Bob Kresmer, Chair, called the meeting to order at 12:35 p.m. in the RSA Video 
Conference Rooms located in Phoenix and Tucson, Arizona. Introductions were 

made, a quorum was present, and the procedural meeting rules were 
explained.  



2

Approval of September 20, 2019 Meeting Minutes 

Jim LaMay moved to approve the minutes of the September 20, 2019 GCBVI 
Full Council meeting as written. David Steinmetz seconded the motion.  Jim 

LaMay requested the minutes be corrected to reflect that the Independent 
Living (IL) Committee had recommended that the Legislative and Public 

Policy Committee develop a White Paper to be sent to the Governor’s Office 
to regarding IL services.  Jim LaMay stated the issues to be addressed were: 

funding history and current funding, suspension of under 55 years of age ILB 
funding and no restoration of the funding, the difficulties related to 

consulting individuals and requirements for new insurance coverage, staff 
vacancies for ILB positions, rates for current services and last historical 

program increase, and exploration of community outreach promoting ILB 
services to represent the largest segment of blind and visually impaired 

population in the state of Arizona.  The amended minutes were approved by 

majority voice vote.  

GCBVI Chairperson’s Report 

Bob Kresmer stated that members of the council were permitted to speak 
during the meeting.  Mr. Kresmer noted that guests would have the 

opportunity to speak at the end of the meeting for no longer than 3 minutes, 
unless called on by the Chair to speak.   

Bob Kresmer stated that Dan Martinez had been a member of the GCBVI for 

several years and had also served on the Public Information Committee.  
Dan Martinez stated he came to the GCBVI in the 1990’s soon after the 

council was established.  Mr. Martinez stated the council was modified due to 
the concerns of the National Federation of the Blind (NFB) regarding the 

level of services to blind and visually impaired individuals.  Dan Martinez 

stated he had served on several committee of the GCBVI, such as the Public 
Information Committee.  Bob Kresmer stated that Dan Martinez always 

advised the council on how to follow policies, Open Meeting Law, and helped 
define the meaning of the council.  Bob Kresmer stated that Dan Martinez 

had been an essential leader of the GCBVI and helped the council to develop 
a structure to make the council accountable to the state and community.  

Bob Kresmer stated that Dan Martinez had been recognized in the 
community and had been well recognized by his peers for his hard work and 

dedication to the council.  Dan Martinez stated that he had surrounded 
himself with successful people in order to be successful.  He noted that the 

leaders in the GCBVI allowed him to contribute to the council.  Amy 
Porterfield stated that she appreciated her time working with Dan Martinez.  

She noted that Dan Martinez was able to convey the message of the council 
during difficult conversations and helped the council move forward.  Ted 



3

Chittenden stated that he would miss having Dan Martinez on the Public 
Information Committee, who had been instrumental in developing the GCBVI 

Annual Report.  Mr. Chittenden stated that Dan Martinez had also served as 
the conscious of the council.  Terri Hedgpeth thanked Dan Martinez, who had 

become a pillar of the blind community, and for always being a non-partisan 
member of the community.  Jim LaMay thanked Dan Martinez for his 

leadership and participation on the council.  Nathan Pullen stated thanked 
Dan Martinez for being a mentor who encouraged Mr. Pullen to do things 

that advanced his career and to take a bigger role in the council.   

Bob Kresmer stated the council had developed several workgroups that had 
been working with stakeholders, other agencies, and vendors to streamline 

services.  Mr. Kresmer stated that workgroups had met to discuss IL services 
and the Summer Youth Transition programs.  Bob Kresmer stated the 

Education Committee would present at the Vision Rehabilitation and 

Assistive Technology Expo (VRATE) regarding the Summer Youth Transition 
program.   

Bob Kresmer stated the council would also like to welcome Dr. Brian Dulude 

as the new Region 3 Program Manager of the Services for the Blind Visually 
Impaired and Deaf (SBVID).  Brian Dulude stated that previously, he was 

the Assistant Director of Blind Inc. which was a vendor of Arizona.  Dr. 
Dulude stated his background included a Doctorate in Rehabilitation and he 

also worked as a Rehabilitation Coordinator, as well as a cane travel 
instructor.  Brian Dulude stated he had his National Orientation and Mobility 

Certification since 2001.  He noted that he would oversee SBVID, Older 
Individuals Who Are Blind (OIB) and the Business Enterprise Program (BEP) 

programs and he looked forward to working with everyone.  Bob Kresmer 
inquired regarding Brian Dulude’s management philosophy.  Brian Dulude 

stated that he believed in the abilities of blind and visually impaired 

individuals and he had high expectations.  He noted that he did not intend to 
stay in the office and would be travelling to the offices to meet with field 

staff.  Amy Porterfield stated the council had expressed concerns regarding 
training to SBVID staff and inquired how Brian Dulude would assess staff 

develop and training.  Brian Dulude stated that he intended to go to each 
office and discuss what was working with staff and what could be improved.  

He noted that he would encourage training to staff and to ensure a smooth 
process of service delivery.  Ted Chittenden stated that Brian Dulude had 

indicated participation with the NFB and inquired regarding the role of 
consumer groups with Vocational Rehabilitation (VR).  Brian Dulude stated 

that he looked forward to working with all consumer groups to collaborate 
with VR.  He noted that he was new to the state and looked forward to 

working with all consumer groups.  David Steinmetz inquired whether Brian 
Dulude would consider evaluating the service providers to ensure they were 



4

providing quality services to clients.  Brian Dulude stated he would visit the 
vendors that were providing services to clients and would learn more about 

the services they were offering.  Bob Kresmer stated that Brian Dulude had 
a strong background in blindness and inquired how Dr. Dulude would 

increase his knowledge of deaf and hard of hearing services as well as 
services to deaf-blind (D/B) individuals.  Brian Dulude stated that he worked 

with individuals that were hard of hearing (HOH) or who had Combined 
Vision and Hearing Loss (CVHL) and received education regarding D/B 

services.  Dr. Dulude stated that some SBVID staff members were deaf or 
HOH and he would learn from them regarding deaf culture and the needs of 

that population.  Bob Kresmer stated that Brian Dulude did have staff that 
were knowledgeable, such as Sue Kay Kneifel, and would be able to help.  

Ed Gervasoni stated the largest group of D/B individuals in Arizona were 
seniors and would require unique services.  Bob Kresmer stated the council 

was pleased to offer any assistance to Brian Dulude or to offer resources as 

needed.  

RSA Administrator’s Report  

Brandi Coffland, Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA) Program 
Coordinator, stated that Rehabilitation Services Administration (RSA) 

continued to work on the VR and BEP State Rules, and the proposed 
rulemaking had been sent to the Department of Economic Security (DES) 

Director for approval.  Brandi Coffland stated that RSA continued to add 
approximately 30-35 individuals to the Order of Selection (OOS) Wait List 

each month, and were placed in Priority 2 and 3.  She noted that individuals 
were pulled off the wait list within the first week of the month and would be 

on the wait list for less than 35 days.  Ms. Coffland stated that RSA recently 
successfully closed the first client in Priority 3.  Brandi Coffland stated that 

RSA hoped to be able to serve all individuals without a delay, in December 

or January.  She stated that RSA welcomed Dr. Brian Dulude as the Region 3 
Program Manager, Charmayne Duerson as the Division of Developmental 

Disabilities (DDD) Statewide Coordinator, and Katherine Mayer as a 
Behavioral Health Specialist.  Brandi Coffland stated the Department of 

Employment and Rehabilitation Services (DERS) held their first Leadership 
Conference, in which about 230 leaders attended and learned about program 

updates and learned new skills.  Brandi Coffland stated that she and Kristen 
Mackey attended the Council of State Administrators of Vocational 

Rehabilitation (CSAVR) Conference.  She noted that Kristen Mackey provided 
a presentation regarding how RSA used data to influence program 

performance and shared how the agency used scorecards and huddles to get 
the information out to the field.   

Ms. Coffland stated that one of RSA’s main projects was on Customer 



5

Service training and how information was shared with clients, vendors, and 
staff.  Brandi Coffland stated that RSA would work with the State 

Rehabilitation Council (SRC) regarding any potential changes to the Client 
Satisfaction Survey.  She stated RSA was also exploring the use of software, 

where clients could leave feedback when visiting an office.  Brandi Coffland 
stated the Pre-Employment Transition Services (Pre-ETS) team had 

identified a single VR office that would serve as the point of contact for each 
local school district, with the hope that it would increase relationships with 

schools and increase referrals.  Brandi Coffland stated the Pre-ETS team was 
also training internal staff to provide Pre-ETS and increase the direct service 

hours from 1400 to 2000 hours a month.  Brandi Coffland stated that RSA 
continued to collaborate with DDD and would build a dedicated VR team to 

serve DDD clients.  She noted that RSA would also hire a Specialist, whom 
would work under the DDD Statewide Coordinator.  Brandi Coffland stated 

that 13 individuals in the DDD program had been placed in employment.   

Brandi Coffland stated in FFY 19, there had been 41 mediations for the last 

fiscal year, in which 2 were regarding applicant’s eligibility, 26 were 
regarding Individualized Plan for Employment (IPE), 11 were regarding 

termination of services or closure, and 2 were other.  She stated that of 
those mediations, 24 were resolved prior to or during the mediation process; 

7 were resolved prior to mediation; 17 resulted in an agreement; and 15 
were not resolved.  Brandi Coffland stated there were 74 Fair Hearings, in 

which 19 were related to an applicant’s eligibility; 22 were related to IPE; 1 
was about the cost of a service; 15 were regarding termination of service or 

closure; and 17 were other.  She stated that of those Fair Hearings, 39 were 
resolved prior to or as an outcome of the Fair Hearing; 31 were not resolved 

or still pending; and 14 went through a Director’s Review.  Ted Chittenden 
stated that several of the Fair Hearing and appeals were related to IPE 

determination and required regarding the reason for those.  Brandi Coffland 

stated she did not have the specifics regarding those cases, although she 
would have Kristen Mackey relay that information to the council.  Amy 

Porterfield stated that many of the Vocational Rehabilitation Counselors of 
the Blind (RCB) were new to Pre-ETS services and inquired how the system 

was referring students to the RCBs.  Brandi Coffland stated her 
understanding that the Transition team was reaching out to all offices and 

counselors, although she could inquire how that process worked.  Amy 
Porterfield inquired whether counselors in Region 3 were included in the 

conversations regarding Pre-ETS services.  Brandi Coffland stated that 
Region 3 counselors were included.  Amy Porterfield inquired whether the 

GCBVI would be included in the review of the Client Satisfaction Surveys.  
Brandi Coffland stated the SRC was included due to requirements of the 

council, although the GCBVI would be included as well.    



6 

Brandi Coffland stated that Cara Christ had been appointed as the Interim 
Department of Economic Security (DES) Director, whom was also the current 

Director of the Department of Health Services.  She noted that Mark Schultz, 
RSA Commissioner, was also the acting Assistant Secretary of the Office of 

Special Education and Rehabilitation Services.  Brandi Coffland stated there 
would be some flexibility in the requirement of obtaining prior approvals for 

purchases, although any facility changes would still require prior approval.  
Brandi Coffland stated that she and Kristen Mackey provided testimony to 

the Arizona Advisory Council to the U.S. Commission on Civil Rights 
regarding 14C and subminimum wage employment.  She noted most of the 

discussion centered around how RSA did not place individuals in 
subminimum wage employment but did facility referrals for individuals and 

provided career counseling to individuals interested in subminimum wage 
employment.  Brandi Coffland stated that RSA was monitored by Federal 

RSA in March of 2018 and had not received the monitoring report.   

Bob Kresmer stated the council would also be interested in knowing the 

number of clients that were represented by lawyers or advocates in the Fair 
Hearings and mediation meetings at future meetings.  Mike Gordon stated 

that RSA was interested in increasing the number of direct service hours of 
Pre-ETS and inquired whether the council could receive an update on the 

Pre-ETS program, such as the number of blind and visually impaired 
students participating in the program, and where they were being served.  

Mike Gordon inquired regarding the last day of the DES Director.  Brandi 
Coffland stated her understanding that the prior DES Director stepped down 

in mid-October.  Brandi Coffland stated that RSA had Pre-ETS data that 
could be shared with the council, although she was unsure regarding the 

break down of the information.  Amy Porterfield inquired whether students 
potentially eligible for VR services were connected to SBVID.  Brandi 

Coffland stated that all individuals would be informed regarding VR services.  

Amy Porterfield stated that is a blind or visually impaired individual was 
informed about VR, that individual should also be informed about SBVID 

services so as not to get lost in the general case load.  Brandi Coffland 
stated that vendors were responsible for educating individuals about VR, 

although she was unsure regarding how all the information was conveyed.  
Bob Kresmer stated the council had expressed concerns that students were 

not referred to RCBs and were working on that with Kristen Mackey.  Amy 
Porterfield stated that a Supervisor had recently been hired in Tucson and 

inquired whether a council member participated on the hiring panel.  Ms. 
Porterfield stated the council had previously requested that the council be 

represented on all critical positions.  Brandi Coffland stated that she was not 
aware of the individuals on that hiring panel, although she would convey the 

question to Kristen Mackey or Sue Kay Kneifel.      



7

SBVID Program Manager Report 

This item was tabled.  

BEP Program Update 

Nathan Pullen stated that 2 Business Enterprise Program (BEP) trainees were 
licensed and had been placed in facilities.  Nathan Pullen stated that BEP 

started a new training class for 3 trainees and noted that BEP worked with 
the Arizona Participating Operators Committee (APOC) to update the 

curriculum.  Nathan Pullen stated that DES had migrated from Outlook to 
Google and he anticipated that the BEP operators would migrate to G Suite 

as well.  He noted that BEP operators could use Google classroom, which 
offered a productive method for training operators.  Nathan Pullen stated the 

BEP office had built out a new training space for BEP operators.  Mr. Pullen 

stated BEP had been contacted by Prescott and would begin operating 
seasonal concession stands.  He noted that contracts would also start with 

the city of Yuma and Avondale.  Nathan Pullen stated that BEP would expand 
micro markets into 4 new markets, with 6 potential markets.  He stated the 

Maricopa County Attorney’s office would remodel the former 4th Avenue jail, 
which would include a large market and potentially a coffee shop.  He noted 

that a Maricopa detention center would consider a similar market as well.  

Nathan Pullen stated that BEP operators had excess set-aside, which was 
distributed back to the operators.  He noted that the Arizona statute 

prescribed a 20% set aside, therefore that amount was collected, and any 
excess was redistributed to the operators.  Nathan Pullen stated that one of 

the revised rules was that the set aside be recalculated and be opened as 
part of the budget process.  Mr. Pullen stated that BEP had a new 

Administrative Assistant and a Repair Technician and would be attending 

training through Karla Rivas-Parker.  David Steinmetz inquired training for 
BEP staff.  Nathan Pullen stated that BEP had a BEP trainer, which allowed 

more control by offering the training in-house through a 6-month in 
classroom and on the job training.  David Steinmetz inquired whether the 

BEP operators received similar training as an individual interested in self-
employment.  Nathan Pullen stated the training was similar although the 

operators received training specific to BEP outcomes, which focused on 
business management and planning.  He noted that BEP partnered with 

SCORES, Executive coaches, and instructors from Grand Canyon University 
(GCU).  Nathan Pullen stated that as part of their training, BEP would 

develop mock announcements, and the operators would bid on those 
contracts on a panel committee, which determined whether the operators 

would become licensed.  David Steinmetz inquired regarding the timeframe 
from graduation until an operator was assigned a contract.  Nathan Pullen 



8

stated the timeframe would vary and noted that BEP did have open contracts 
in rural areas although some operators were not able to relocate.  He noted 

that during the BEP operator screening process, BEP did encourage 
individuals to be willing to move in order to obtain employment.  Ted 

Chittenden inquired whether there was an update regarding the previous 
issue with the Lake Havasu Board.  Nathan Pullen stated that BEP had 

received some push back previously from Mohave County, which preferred 
not to use BEP operators.  Nathan Pullen stated that BEP had educated the 

county regarding the benefit of working with BEP operators and had not 
received any further push back.  He noted that BEP was actively trying to 

place an operator in that local area.  Nathan Pullen stated that Mohave 
County had inquired with the Arizona League of Cities and Towns, a lobbying 

body, to encourage the Legislature to eliminate the Randolph Sheppard Act.  
Mr. Pullen stated that he spoke with some of the representatives from that 

lobbying body regarding the BEP program and had indicated they would not 

pursue the issue.  Bob Kresmer inquired whether BEP operators were able to 
obtain continuing education or advanced training.  Nathan Pullen stated BEP 

was working on development of additional training, such as an upcoming 
Google training, and instruct on the use of G Suite.  Mr. Pullen stated BEP 

would also host a training on micro markets for operators.  He noted that as 
part of training, operators could also submit a request for equipment to be 

purchased.  He added that operators were also able to attend various 
conferences such as Sage Brush, National NAMA, mini Blast, or Legislative 

sessions.  Bob Kresmer inquired regarding the pursuit of non-governmental 
sites.  Nathan Pullen stated he encouraged staff to conduct at least 2 site 

surveys a month for private sites.  He noted that BEP began with a list of the 
top 100 companies in Phoenix, although BEP did have contracts with Swift, 

and had plans to pursue other companies such as Bang Energy.    

ASDB Report 

Lisa Yencarelli stated the total number of students that listed blindness or 

visual impairment enrolled at ASDB was 797.  Ms. Yencarelli stated on the 
Tucson campus, there were 41, on the Phoenix Day School for the Deaf 

(PDSD), there were 17, and the Early Childhood program has 79.  She noted 
the Desert Valley Regional Co-Operative had 215, the Eastern Highlands Co-

Operative had 44, the North Central Regional Co-Operative had 73, the 
Southeast Regional Co-Operative had 116 the Southwest Regional Co-

Operative had 30, and the Foundation for Blind Children (FBC) had 182.  Lisa 
Yencarelli stated there were 4 full time and 1 part time job openings.  Ms. 

Yencarelli stated the Early Learning, Birth to 3 programs, had 1 job opening, 
the Desert Regional Co-Operative had 1 full time Teacher for the Visually 

Impaired (TVI), 1 part-time TVI, and 1 O&M instructor.  She noted that 
Northcentral Regional Co-Operative had 1 full-time TVI position.  Lisa 



9

Yencarelli stated that ASBD provided devices to students, although some of 
the devices needed to be replaced.  Ms. Yencarelli stated ASDB sent 7 staff 

to the National Braille Conference.  She added that a representative from 
Human Ware provided additional training to teachers and students in 

Phoenix and Prescott Valley.  She stated the staff presented at the Western 
Regional Early Intervention Conference.  

Annette Reichman stated ASDB continued to move forward with ASDB’s 

Strategic Plan and was addressing the teacher shortage, which was a 
national shortage.  Amy Porterfield stated that she had the opportunity to sit 

in on an IEP meeting and inquired regarding the organization of the teachers 
and the TVIs.  Lisa Yencarelli stated that teachers specialized in core content 

and other teachers specialized in specialized content and those teachers 
worked together.  Amy Porterfield inquired whether the general teachers 

could be certified in UEB Braille. Lisa Yencarelli stated she would investigate 

that certification.  Terri Hedgpeth inquired regarding the current and mid-
range salary of a TVI.  Annette Reichman stated the average salary of a TVI 

working at ASDB was $60,000 - $70,000.  Amy Porterfield inquired 
regarding ASDB’s hiring policy regarding employment of certified staff.  Lisa 

Yencarelli stated ASDB was open to all suggestions.  Amy Porterfield inquired 
regarding the policies in Arizona statute regarding certifications.  Lisa 

Yencarelli stated she would forward that information to Ms. Porterfield.  Bob 
Kresmer inquired regarding the classroom structure of general education 

teachers and the TVIs.  Lisa Yencarelli stated the TVIs were teaching Braille 
and AT to students, and the general education teachers would work with the 

TVIs to provide education to the students.  Bob Kresmer stated that ASDB 
had discussed offering instruction through alternate methods to students in 

rural areas and inquired regarding that process.  Annette Reichman stated 
ASDB had implemented a pilot project to provide instruction to students in 

rural areas through video technology.  Amy Porterfield stated the Summer 

Youth Transition Program Road Show had been moved to December and 
inquired whether ASDB was aware of that change.  Doris Woltman stated 

her understanding that the December dates were tentative dates.  Bob 
Kresmer stated that he understood the dates were tentative also, and that 

RSA intended to visit more sites in person and place less emphasis on the 
video conference presentations.  Mr. Kresmer noted that he would confirm 

those dates with Sue Kay Kneifel.     

GCBVI Committee Reports 

Public Information 

Ted Chittenden stated the statistics for EyeKnow.AZ were: 



10

September  

Number of sessions (visits) 95 
Number of individuals visiting website 85 

Pages viewed per visit 3.13 
Time spent visiting the database (minutes) .54 

New visitors 90.9% 
Returning users 9.1% 

October 

Number of sessions (visits) 67 

Number of individuals visiting website 60  
Pages viewed per visit 2.88            

Time spent visiting the database (minutes) 1.15 

New visitors 87.5%     
Returning Users 12.5%    

The GCBVI Facebook statistics were: 

September 

Page views: 4 
Post Reach: 23 

Page Likes: 2 
Post Engagement: 10 

Page Follows: 4 

October 

Page views: 1 
Post reach: 9 

Post engagements: 1 

Ted Chittenden stated that GCBVI would have a table at the upcoming Vision 

Rehabilitation and Assistive Technology Expo (VRATE) on November 15th and 
16th, and all council members were welcome to help staff the table.  Ted 

Chittenden stated that Janet Fisher had forwarded him EyeKnow.AZ 
statistics broken down by the category searched, zip codes and the dates.  

Ted Chittenden stated that when he reviewed the statistics, the total number 
of searches in September was 31, there were 8 searches for blindness 

categories, 10 searches for low vision, 4 searches for CVHL.  Ted Chittenden 
stated that in October, the total number of searches was 29, 11 searched for 

the all categories, 4 searched for blindness categories, 7 searched for low 



11

vision and 7 searched for CVHL sources.  Ted Chittenden inquired whether 
the statistics would be useful for the council to review monthly, or whether 

the council would benefit from reviewing the statistics over a year.  David 
Steinmetz stated the council would also benefit from knowing the locations 

of the individuals searching.  Ted Chittenden stated the statistics did identify 
the locations and noted that the majority of the searched were in the 

Phoenix metropolitan area.  

Deaf/Blind Issues Committee 

Ed Gervasoni stated the D/B Committee still needed council members to 
participate on the committee.  Mr. Gervasoni stated the committee had 

developed a workgroup that was developing a White Paper regarding the 
inclusion of D/B representation on the council, that would be presented to 

the committee.  Ed Gervasoni stated the Arizona Commission for the Deaf 

and Hard of Hearing (ACDHH) submitted the policy regarding Support 
Service Providers (SSP) and their ability to provide sign language 

interpretation.  He noted that SSPs were not permitted to copy sign from 
another individual in a formal situation, to a D/B individual.  Ed Gervasoni 

stated that SSPs were paid differently than ASL interpreters and had to 
abide by stronger guidelines.  Ed Gervasoni stated a SSP could provide 

interpreting in an informal setting, however.  He noted the ACDHH had 
submitted a Request for Proposal (RFP) for SSP services.  Ed Gervasoni 

stated the Arizona Long Term Care Services (ALTCS) program would offer 
intervener services for D/B clients, and the committee would receive an 

update regarding that program.  Bob Kresmer inquired whether there were 
any solutions regarding the SSP issue.  Ed Gervasoni stated the ACDHH was 

trying to identify what SSPs could do and could not do according to licensure 
laws.  Bob Kresmer inquired whether the SSP training curriculum had been 

developed.  Ed Gervasoni stated the ACDHH was offering a certification for 

attending for SSPs that attended the training.  Ted Chittenden inquired 
whether a D/B individual would be required to pay for an interpreter to 

attend a formal event.  Ed Gervasoni stated that if a D/B individual wanted 
to access a formal event, the organization would be responsible for providing 

the interpreter.  Bob Kresmer inquired whether the D/B Committee was 
working with the ACDHH to resolve the issues.  Ed Gervasoni stated the 

committee was receiving reports from the ACDHH, which was working with 
the Attorney General’s Office.  Amy Porterfield inquired whether the role of 

the SSP had narrowed.  Ed Gervasoni stated that the situation was 
complicated and noted that a SSP could go to the bank with a D/B individual, 

but if the individual needed to speak about a mortgage, for example, the 
SSP would not be permitted to assist.  Ms. Porterfield inquired whether the 

policy identified the difference between a formal and informal event.  Ed 
Gervasoni stated the ACDHH had been deliberating the policy for several 



12

months and noted that Sue Kay Kneifel would be able to provide a more 
detailed update as she was on the ACDHH Board and the Interpreting 

Licensure Committee.   

Assistive Technology Committee 

Bea Shapiro stated the AT Committee would be co-presenting with the 
Education Committee on worksite assessments at VRATE on Friday afternoon 

in the Emerald Room. 

Employment Committee 

Nathan Pullen stated the Employment Committee had tentatively scheduled 
the next E75 Diversity Event for January 29, 2020 at Ability 360. 

Ex-Oficio Member and Blindness Community Organization Updates 

Arizona Talking Book Library  

This item was tabled.  

Arizona Center for the Blind and Visually Impaired (ACBVI) 

Jim LaMay stated that Betsy Tate had been an O&M instructor for 29 years 
and would be recognized at the State AER meeting.  Mr. LaMay stated  

ACBVI would hold a fundraiser on November 24th with a winery, and limited 
tickets were available for $65.   

SAAVI Services for the Blind 

Mike Gordon stated Dr. Bell made a site visit in October from Louisiana Tech, 
and provided an assessment of the different areas the organization could 

benefit from such as Leadership, Code of Conduct and Personnel policies.  
Mr. Gordon stated SAAVI was in the process of sending the Staff Manual to 

Dr. Bell.  He noted that Dr. Bell or his staff would visit SAAVI regularly to 
provide hands on mentorship and staff would also visit Louisiana for 

immersion training.  Mike Gordon stated SAAVI would be required to have a 
strong administrative mentorship, which would assist the agency in 

navigating contracts and reporting approaches, which would benefit the 
agency and the state.  Mike Gordon stated SAAVI had recently hired a new 

Finance Director and an O&M instructor.  Mike Gordon stated ten teachers 
were attending the Association for Education and Rehabilitation of the Blind 

and Visually Impaired (AER), to strengthen partnerships.  Ed Gervasoni 
inquired regarding the construction near SAAVI and whether the 



13

organization would be relocating.  Mike Gordon stated the construction had 
continued and SAAVI had a real estate attorney whom was able to keep the 

process going.   

Arizona Council of the Blind (AzCB) 

Ted Chittenden stated the AzCB had tentatively scheduled the next State 
Conference for the last Saturday in April at ACBVI or Ability 360.  

 National Federation of the Blind of Arizona (NFBA) 

Donald Porterfield stated the NFBA recently celebrated several events in 

October in Phoenix and Tucson and played games such as Uno with Braille.  
Donald Porterfield stated the NFBA participated in a 10K race by passing out 

water to runners.  He noted the NFBA would hold the Phoenix Seminar in 

January at the State Capitol to present the Legislative agenda and would 
send individuals to the Washington Seminar in February.  Donald Porterfield 

stated the NFB National Convention would be July 14-19 in Houston.  He 
noted the organization was looking for students seeking scholarships, that 

would be attending college.  He noted that NFB had awarded 30 individuals 
with scholarships and more information could be found at 

https://www.nfb.org/programs-services/scholarships-and-
awards/scholarship-program 

Agenda Items and Date for Next Meeting 

The next meeting of the GCBVI Full Council will be on January 17, 2020 from 

12:30 pm to 3:00 pm. in the Video Conference Room, at 515 N. 51st 
Avenue, Phoenix, AZ.  

Bob Kresmer inquired whether the council would like to schedule future 
meetings from 1:00 -3:00.  Ed Gervasoni stated the council would need 

more time to discuss all agenda items.  Amy Porterfield stated that if the 
council was constrained, the members would be able to discuss all items in 

the allotted time.  Ted Chittenden agreed that the council should continue to 
meet from 12:30 -3:00 to allow enough time to address all agenda items.  

Bob Kresmer stated the council meeting times would remain 12:30 -3:00. 

Announcements 

David Steinmetz announced the Arizona Industries for the Blind (AIB) had 
renegotiated a contract, which would include an increase of the number of 

employees on the contract.  Mr. Steinmetz stated that AIB would hold a 
Strategic Planning meeting in December and would focus on the goals for 

https://www.nfb.org/programs-services/scholarships-and-awards/scholarship-program
https://www.nfb.org/programs-services/scholarships-and-awards/scholarship-program


14

2020. 

Bob Kresmer stated that Arizona State University (ASU) was offering a 
bachelor’s program for individuals interested in becoming TVIs.  He noted 

that interested individuals could contact Jared Kittelson at FBC for more 
information on how to apply for the program.     

Call to the Public 

A call to the public was made with no response’s forthcoming.  

Adjournment of Meeting  

Amy Porterfield moved to adjourn the meeting.  Ted Chittenden seconded 

the motion.  The meeting was adjourned at 3:00 pm



15

Attachment A 

As of September 30, 2019: 

The total number of individuals in the VR program was 1038 
The total number of Veterans in VR Program was 37 

The total number of individuals in the OOS was 3 
The total number of individuals in Priority Two was 3 

The total number of individuals in Priority Three was 0 

The number of VR applications was 231 
The average number of days from application to eligibility was 46.4 

The median number of days application to eligibility was 41 
The eligibility determination compliance within 60 days was 87.7% 

The number of new plans written was 263 
The average number of days from eligibility to IPE implementation was 88.7 

The median number of days from eligibility to IPE implementation was 71 
The IPE implementation compliance within 90 days was 75.7% 

The highest hourly wage of successful employment outcomes was $55.29 
The average hourly wage of successful employment outcomes was $9.00 

The number of clients placed was 57 
The number of clients closed successfully was 55 

As of September 30, 2019, the Deaf Blind Population statistics: 

The total number of individuals in the VR program was 44 
The total number of Veterans in VR program was 1 

The total number of individuals in the OOS was 0 
The total number of individuals in Priority Two was 0 

The total number of individuals in Priority Three was 0 
The number of VR applications was 0 

The number of new plans written was 0 
The IPE Implementation Compliance within 90 days was 87.5% 

The highest hourly wage of successful employment outcomes was $26.44 
The average hourly wage of successful employment outcomes was $19.45 

The number of clients placed was 2 
The number of clients closed successfully was 4 


